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MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825

Independent Auditor’'s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements
Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor
Members of the Town Council
Town of Mammoth Lakes, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 15, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town's internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Town's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Mammoth Lakes’ financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the Town council, others
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

Woarcello & Co

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 15, 2012



MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95825

Independent Auditor's Report On Compliance With Requirements That Could
Have A Direct And Material Effect On Each Major Program And On
Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133
And On The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Honorable Mayor
Members of the Town Council
Town of Mammoth Lakes, California

Compliance
We have audited the Town of Mammoth Lakes’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in

the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the Town’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Town's
maijor federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Town's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Controf over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.



Honorable Mayor
Members of the Town Council
Mammoth Lakes, California

A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Mammoth Lakes as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2012. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the Town council, others
within the entity, and federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

Warcello & Co

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 15, 2012



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ CFDA Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT)
Airport Improvement Program
Direct Award: Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)

FAA Grant: AIP 18 Project #03-06-0146-18 20.106 $ 51,821

FAA Grant: AIP 23 Project #03-06-0146-23 20.106 6,926
Highway Planning & Construction (Federal-Aid Highway Program)

Lake Mary Road TE Kiosks (ARRA)

Project ESPL-5439(023) ARRA 20.205 36,402

Lakeview Road Project #HSAIPL-5439 (021) 20.205 27,818
Federal Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Program

Sierra Park Gap Project #SRTS-5439 (023) 20.205 29,111

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through the State of California, Dept. of Transportation (Caltrans)
USFS Lands Way Funding Project #10-CSd-10059702-093 20.205 22,316

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD)
Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program
Passed through the State of California,
Department of Housing and Community Development
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
CDBG Standard Agreement #09-STAR-6383 ARRA 14.255 398,491

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (DOJ)
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants (COPS)
Direct Award: COPS Hiring Recovery Program (CHRP)
Grant #2009RKWX0130 ARRA 16.710 149,035

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Energy Efficiency & Conservation Block Grant
Passed through the State of California,
California Energy Commission
State Program B/A IT.3360-001-0890 (2)

Energy Resources Conservation ARRA 81.042 41,646
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 763566



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Note A - Reporting Entity Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of
the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California (Town) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June
30, 2012. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Town, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position or
changes in net assets of the Town.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and
Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

(2) Federal grant awards were primarily passed through the State of California, as reported on the Schedule, with
direct awards indicated.

(3) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers included in the accompanying Schedule were
determined based upon program name, review of grant contract information, and the Office of Management and
Budget's CFDA.

(4) There were no subrecipients of federal awards this year.



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2012

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
2. Internal controls over financial reporting:
a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? No

Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?  No

4. Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
ARRA 14.255 U.S. Dept of HUD - CDBG State's Program

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs? $300,000

6. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
under OMB Circular A-133, section 510(a) Yes

SECTION 1l - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Current Year: None Reported
Prior Year: None Reported

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Current Year: None Reported
Prior Year: None Reported



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES

California
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MARCELLO & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2701 Cottage Way, Suite 30 / Sacramento, California 95821

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor
Members of the Town Council
Town of Mammoth Lakes, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Mammoth Lakes,
California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Mammoth Lakes’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, as of June 30, 2012, and
the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15,
2012, on our consideration of the Town of Mammoth Lakes’ internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.



Honorable Mayor
Members of the Town Council
Town of Mammoth Lakes, California

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, and budgetary comparison information on pages 43 through 44, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historic context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance. The Town of Mammoth Lakes has not presented management's discussion and
analysis that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has determined is necessary to supplement,
although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Mammoth Lakes’ financial statements as a whole. The schedule of funding progress-
defined benefit pension plans, and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
schedule of funding progress-defined benefit pension plans were provided to the Town of Mammoth Lakes by
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System Actuarial Office and has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Worcello & 5om¢¢am7,

Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
November 15, 2012



SAINIWILVLS TVIONVNId FAIM-LNIANHINOD



4

Juswaye]s [eioueul Sy} jo ped [eibajul ue a.e SjuaWale)s [eloueul o) sejou buiuedwodde ay |

£19'28¥'s8  $ 950°L659  § /G5'168'8L $
(£90'¥98'8) (9s51°252'€) (L16°909'G)
6v8'016'2 - 6v8'016'2
LE8'SEY 16 FARA 2 K5 619°/85°18
G8Y' LE0'GE 202 161 £82'0¥8'vE
8v1',/6'92 - 8v1'2/6'92
982'c2s'e » 982'ces'e
L16'9€6'2 8/9'6L1 6£2°218'2
950265 89l'ey 888'8YS
028'9.5 - 02895
gse'sey’ 96£82 206'96€" |
8607 15°021 862'28.'9 ov8'LEL'ELL
86/'/2€°18 8..'6¥¥'6 020'8.8°L.L
9/.'866°Ct 91E'v¥S 09P'vSY'2l
962902 - 952'902
£85'99/°21 098'GY g2L'02L'2l
/60'8¥9 - 160'8%9
121'8EY L¥0'9 oElL'eey
- (£96'06.°€) 196'06.'€
8/G'1S.'Yy 250'6.€ 925'2LE'Y
eeg'o/e’L $ AN 1A $ l99‘'gge’L. %
lelotL SalIAIOY saljAloy
adA)-ssauisng jEjUBWUIIACY)

juswuIaA0Y) Alewiltd

S]9SSE Jau [ej0 |
pajolsalun
pajousay
1g8p paie|al Jo Jou ‘sjesse [ended ul palseny|
sjassy 19N

sahyiqelf [ejo
Jeak auo uey aiow U ang
Jeah auo uiyum anq
:uonebijqo wswbpnl xnsme
1eaA auo ueyl ajow ul ang
Jeal auo uiypm sng
:Sal}l|Igel| JUBLINDUON
anuanal pallajaQ
a|qefed sjunoaay
sanlqel

sjesse |ejo|
uoneioaldap Jo jou ‘sjesse [ende)
paleioaidap buiaq jou sjasse [ende)
wabe [eos|) yum Yses pajouisay
a|qeAladal sajoN

3|geAIadal SUBoT

sasuadxe predald

Saoue(eq [eulalu|

sa|qenlaoay

SJUBLWIISAAUI PUE YseD

sjossy

2102 ‘o€ aunp

sjossy loN jO juawajels

sjuawalels |eloueUld aPIM-IUSWUIBA0L)
SaMV1 HLOWNYIN 40 NMOL



S

JuswalB)s [eroueuy Siy) Jo Led [eibajul ue aie sjuswWwe}els [eloueul o} sejou buiAuedwodoe ey

€10'28v'68 ¢  9G0'L66'9 $  /GG'168'8L §  Jeah jo pus - sjessy 1aN

¥66'75.'88 092'8.5'9 ¥€L'9L1'28 Bujuuibeq - sjessy 18N
(Lee'eLe'e) 96L'zt (£21'582'€) sjessy 19N ul abueyo

££5°606'61 0E8.'682 09v°'151'6L s|el0}

9808901 1/5'62. 605'8EE (1no) ur s1gjsuRl|

88161 £61'09 1E£6'20€ senuanal J8ul0

v19'vp - gel'le Buiuiea yuawysaau|

v12'292 - ¥19'vp saleuad g saulg

v.2'192 - v.2'192 siwiad g sasuadl

oie'seL - oie'ses $89) asIyouely

Lp'sLe - LW'sie saxe)} ssauisng

YEL'EBS - peL'ess soxe) siasn Ann

L12've6's - Llg'vee's Aouednooo Jua|suel

£l1'2e6'e - £L1'286'2 soxe] safes

2eg'eoe'e - zeg'eoe's saxe) Apadoid

INUIAIY |el3uan)
(1L5'e12'€2) (ve6'9LL) {Le9'9ev'22) 010'290'2 ¢ ewes9y $ Le2'0s8’t  $  SiesLle  $ Juawuiaaob Arewud fejo L
(£6'9LL) {¥€6'9.24) $98'652 000'000'L 09%'659 852'269'2 soaloe adA}-ssauisng |eloL
(226) (226) - - 0E8'z £08'C swebeuew |pue]
(2s6'52L) (286'52L) $ #98's52 000'000°1L 0£9'959 15'889'2 vodny
sajjAnoy adAy-ssauisng
{z€9'9ev'22) {£89'98v22) 9¥1'908'1 Elv'259'e 192'064'L 156'680'62 salAno. [ejusulaAab [ejo
{¥E9'29) (ve9'Ls) - - - $€9'25 19ep wual-Buoj uo Jsalaly|
(826'689'6) (826'689'6) - - - 826'689'6 asuadxa uopeloaidag
292'00€' L} 292'00€L L - - - (zoz'00E' 1) uoijonpal JuawbBpn( ynsmeT
(ve8'99e'2) (ves'99e'e) 9v1'908‘L GE2'9e8 - 612'600'S sjoafoud |eyde)
(1et's¥9'L) (1ev'sy9'L) - le8'ep - 292'889'1 Buisnoy ao10pji0 M
80€'286 80€'/86 - 2009112 986'102 089'08€’L usueJ) pue uoliepodsuel |
(912'9p1'G) (912'9p1') - 655'8¢¢2 0,2'0€2 S¥0'909'S sjoalls / sHiom olgnd
(Lee'00s'l) (L2e'00s')) - - ¥99'€S1 G86'€59'L Juawdojansp Ajunwiwo)
(156't6¥'E) (156°16¥'€) - - ere'age £62'85.'C uonea1dal pue syied ‘WsunoL
(616'268'V) (616°'268'p) - 099'vey l01'82 989'05€'S Aajes alqnd
(e/v'z26's) % (eLv'226's) $ - $  9gl'y $ 268'60€ $ 1ev'ibe9  $ JuswuIaob [elsusn
SaIAIOY [BjUBUILIBACD)
[elog SaIAnoY SaIAIdY suonnguuo) suoinquuo) S9oINIG sasuadx3y swiesboid/suonoung
adAj-ssauisng |BIUSWIUIBAOK) pue sjuels pue sjuess Joj sabiey)
lende) Bunesadp

juaWLIBA0Y) Alewiid

S19SSY 19N Ul abuey) pue anuaaay (asuadx3z) 19N

sanuanay weiboig

2102 ‘0€ aunp papug Jeaj
SaIlIANDY JO JUSWE]S

SJuaWalelS [eloueUl4 IPI-IUBWIUIANCD)

SNV HLOWNVIN 40 NMOL



SANIWFLVLS TVIONVNI4 dNNd



9

Juawaje)s [eloueUl Siy} Jo ped [eibajul ue aie sjuawaje)s [ejoueuy o} sajou builuedwoooe ey |

/Sv'e/9'le ¢ 0z29esee $ log'ov8 ¢  6/1'8e8°'L$  ¥¥9 $ osi'eyl$ e2p'Shiet $  89L'Svr'vL $
0918689 (ve6e'228‘t) 221 1v8 ove'LES L (e08°01¥°2) - - 688'857'8
v.1'2v0e (522°090°2) - - (e08'01v'2) - - 2G6.'€15'9
LEL'SYO'L - - - - - - LEL'SYO'L
6¥8'016'2 18£'8¢ee 2eL1v8 ope‘1E8’t - - - -
000°006 - - - - - - 000°006
162'v..'ve ¥10'920'v 6EL'S £€8'0 Lyv' b2 9SL'EV 1 62v'srL'el 6.2'986'S
08t'2£9'6 0/¥'5¥8'2 - - £08'0Lv'2 - - 102'9/8Y
£vG'/68CH - - - - - £22'028'Lt 028'9/S
G952V’ | 8IB8 YL - - 19 - SOLLIE 8£6'8
602182t $  92.'88 $ BEL'S ¢ ee8'9 $ - ¢ 9oSL'evt$ LYS'EL $ vIEYSO'lL $
/Sv'e/9'le ¢ 029'tse’e $ log'oy8 $  6/1'888°'L$  ¥¥9 $ osL'evl$ e62r'SvL'eL $  89L'SHYVL S
952'90¢2 952'90¢2 - - - - - -
1£€'02¥'8 - - - - - - LEE'02¥'8
STANANA - - - - - £22'028°t1 000'006
66V 182y 6v2‘LLE L ££8°0S 000‘9E ¥¥9 - 90/'v2E 190'26€'2
Zro'ev0'e $  SHL'0Z9 ¢ sev'seL ¢ 6LL20LtS - ¢ osL'evt$ - $ Pv9s'cel'e $
spund spund pund xej pundg pund did pun4d pung pun4
_ma:w:._:._0>00 [ejustianoy) S19S) >a___u3 Xe| sojeg Sal)ljioe4 xXe] ucoEQO_0>wD jelauan)
jeiol 1BUI10 N 24nsesy] H ainsesay jelausay) sey) ?:::EEOO
» BuisnoH

saoueeq punj
pue sanljiqel| fejo
saoue|eq puny fejol
paubisseun
paubissy
papiwwo)
pajouisay
a|gqepuads-uopn
sasuejeq pung

saliqel [elol
SUEBO| punuau|
anuaaal palaleQq
yelplano ysed
ajqefed sjunoooy
sanliqer

sjesse [ejoL
yseo pajouisay
SUEBO| punaju|
s|qeAlaoal saloN
sa|qeAlaoay
SJUBLWISAUI pUB YSED
sjessy

cloeg ‘og aunp
Spun4 |elU3WUISA0Y)

199ysg asuejeq

SV HLOWNWVIN 40 NMOL



9

Juswaje)s [eroueuy Sy} Jo ped [eibejul ue aie SJuaWae)s [eloueuly o} sejou bulfueduwodoe sy

/G¥'2/9'LE ¢ 029'esce ¢ Loz'or8 ¢ 621L'8€8'LS  ¥¥9 ¢ oGL'evl$ ecv'svi'cL $  89l'svr'vl ¢
091'868'9 (r6g'zE8’t) ZCL'Ly8 9ve'LEs’L (c08'0L¥'2) - - 688'85%'8
¥21'2¥0'C (522'090'2) - - (€08'01Y'2) - - Z62'€15'9
LEL'GPO'L - - - - - - LEL'SYO'L
6¥8'016'2 1L8E'8ET Z2L'L¥8 ope'Les’l - - - -
000'006 - - - - - - 000006
16C'V1L'Ve 10'9/0't 6EL'S ££8'9 P LLP'T oGL'erl 6cr'syL'CL 6.2'986'S
08¥'2€£9'6 0.¥'6¥8'C - - €08'0L¥'2 - - 102'9/€'y
€¥S'/6E'CL - - - - - €2.'028'LL 028'9.S
G95'Z9¥'L 8L8'L¥L'L - - ¥¥9 - GIL'LLE 8£6'8
60.°182°L $  92.'88 ¢ 6El'S ¢ €£8'9 ¢ - ¢ o9si'erl$ LyS'ElL ¢ PvLEPSO'L $
/G¥'2/9'LE §  029'tsCC ¢ lozov8 ¢  6/1'868°L$  v¥9 ¢ oGL'erl$ 62v'SyL'ci $  89L'ShYvVL $
952'902 952'902 - - - - - -
1£€'02V'8 - - - - - - LE€'02Y'8
€22.'02.°2) - - - - - €2.'028°LL 000'006
66v'L82'Y 6v2' 2.8 ££8'05 000'9cl 9 - 90.'¥2E 190'26€'C
Zvo'sv0'o ¢ SLL'o9 ¢ 8gv'ees, ¢ 6LLTOLLS - ¢ osL'evls - ¢ v9.'2el'CT $

spund spung pung xej pundg pund 4id pung pung pun4g
[RIJUDWILIBAOS  [ejudWILIdA0SD  siasn Ajnn xej sajes saljijioe xej juswdojansq |e4auan)

[ejol Y30 N 24nsea| Y ainseapy jelauas) seo) Aunwuwo)

w» Buisnoy

saoue|eq punj
pue sajl|iqe]| [ejol
saouefeq punj [ejo]
paubisseun
paubissy
pajiwo)
pajousey
a|gepuads-uonN
saouejeg pung

sall|iqel| [ejoL
SUBO| punyaju|
anuanal pausyad
YeIpIaA0 YseD
ajqeAed sunoooy
sayljiqenn

sjesse |ejol
yseo pajoLlsay
SUEO| punyajui
s|qeAl@oal SBJON
$8|qBAIg0aY
S)UBWI]SBAUI PUB YSB)
sjossy

ZiLoz ‘og aunp

Spun4 [EJU3WUIBA0Y)

j99Yg aouejeq

SaNV1HLONWWVIN 40 NMOL



YA

Juswajels [eroueuy siy} jo ped [eibajul ue ale sjuswale]s [eloueul o} sajou BuiAuedwoooe ay |

/65°168'8L $ (y abed) SanIAIIOY [EJUSWILIAAOY) - S}3SSY 19N

GG/'908'/ "SBIIAIIOE JO JUBLLBIE]S 8U)} Ul SBINAIIOE [eJusWUISA0b ul papnjoul aJe spunj 821A8s
[EUIBIUI 8] JO SBNIjIGEI| PUE S]8SSE 3y | "Spuny [ENPIAIPUI 0} SBIlANDR sjiysuaq @akojdwa
pue |ood Jojow 4o 1500 8y} abieys o} Juswabeuew Aq pasn ale spuny 80IAI8S [eulBU|

S99IA19G [eulalu]

gel'0el'glL "]9S1JO UE JNOYIM UMOYS BIE B|qBAI90aI S8J0U 9S8y} SI9SSE 18U JO JudWale)s
8y} Jo} JaABMOH "JUNODJE AJjiqel] SNUSAS) PalIajap B YIM JosHo pue 18ays adueleq
spuny [eluawulanoh ay) uo paplooal ale suoneziueblo Jjoiduou wWolj ajgealddal SajoN

anuaAay pallaja( / 3|qeAlad3y S9I0N

(8v1°226'92) Jeak auo uey} aiow ul eng

(982'€25'2) Jeak suo uIyIm angg
uonebijqo yuawbpnp Insme"]

(6e2°'218'2) JeaA auo uey} 810w Ul eng
(888'8¥5) 1eak auo uyIm ang
:19ays asuejeq spunj [eluawulanob ay) ui pauodal
Jou aJojeley] pue pouad Juaund ay) Ul ajgeAed pue anp jou ale saliqel wis} buo
suonebijqo wua} buo

020'8.8°LL uoneioaidap Jo 18U ‘sjesse [ende)
09v'vSv'et paleloaidap bulaq jou sjesse [ende)
"198ys aouejeq spunj sy} ut papodal Jou ale aioRlau}
‘DUE S92IN0S8I [BIDUBUIY JOU 81 SBIAIOE [EJuSLIUIBA0B Ul pasn sjasse [ejde)
sjassy [ende)

:Buimoy|o} ay} Jo asneoaq Juatayip aJe (o1 abed) sjesse jJau
JO JUSWAJE]S Ay} Ul UWINJOD SAINAOE [eluaWILIaA0b ay) ul papodal sjunowy

ooL‘ge89 $ (9 abed) spun4 [ejusllIUIBAOY) - S@oUElE]g pund [el0]

¢1oz ‘og aunp

S19SSY 19N JO juawajels ay} o}

}o9ys aouejeg Spun4 [BJUSWUIAA0K) 3} JO UONEI|19U0IdY
SINV1 HLOWNVIN 40 NMO.L



8

Juawale}s jeioueuy siy) jo yed (eibajul ue ale sjuawale)s jeroueul o) s8ou buifuedwoooe sty

001L'868'9 $ (v6£'zZ8't) $§ 2Zl'LvB ¢ gve'1es't § (eog'olp'z) $ - $ - $ 688'8S¥'8 $ Jeak Jo pus - saouejeg pung
LLy'60Y°0L (082'156'L) - 625'90¢€'} r'eLy'2) - 209'2L L6Y'LOV'EL Buiuuibaq - saouejeg puny
(16Z'L1G'E) 98e'GEL zeL'ive 218'v2S 6£9'8 - (L09'2L) {809'8t6"Y) sasuejeg pung u) abueyy
(281'€E6) £8€'v88 B {6Er'181) - 885'918'1 - 1 L'267'E) $221n0s Bujoueuy Jeyio [ejo L
(PLE'L2¥'GL) (ceg'ovl) - (6EV'1L8L) - (126'062) - £90'v98'v1) (1no) sugysuesj
ZEL'PIS YL 812's20't - - - G95'201'T - 6¥E'LIY'LL u) sugysuel)
(sasn) saainog Bupsueuld Jayio
(620'8.5'2) (/66'8tL) 2ZLLy8 962'90. 6€9'8 (885'918'L) (L09'2L) (r68'G6Y'}) saunyipuadxy (repun)
JIA0 BNUBASY JO SS3IX]
OvE'0+0'82 ELE'LY6'T ZL0'Cy £08°LEE - £PL'G66'E Zv8'806 122'G1L8'61 sainyipuadxa {ej0
gLY'166 8LY'L6S - - - - - - 201uas 1GoQ
292'889'L - - - - - Z¥8'806 ozy'slL Buisnoy adJoppopm
089'0€E't Lep'9LT - - - - - eve'hLL'L Jisueys pue uoyepodsues|
620'204'2 620'201'2 - - - - - - speloid jeyded
00G'L1E'S - - - - £p1'G66'E - lse'zee'L $198415 / SIIOM Jliand
G86'€G9'L 801°02 - - - - - 118'€E9'L swidojaaap Ajunwiwo)
£62'85.'c - ey £08'LEE - - - 8.v'8l€'t uoneasoas pue syed ‘wsunoj
089'05€'s GZe's - - - - - L9E'SHE'S fsjes onaqnd
L6¥'L¥2'9 - - - - - - L6b'LP2'9 juswwanob [eisusg
sainyjpuadxy
112'29b'ST 9LE'Z6L'e $EL'E68 6S0'v¥0'L 6£9'8 GGG'8.L'C Gez'acs £EE'6LE'8L anuanal [ejoL
626'20¢€ G6.'9L1 - - - 00z'se - $£6'L6 anuaAal JaYIo
G2L'L6 116 - - £vs'e - - Liz'ss Ayadosd pue Keuow Jo asn
Y19'vh - - - - - - p19'vh sapjeuad pue saul4
$06'v20'L G98'Le - - 960'9 £6E'vE - 065'256 sao)uas 10§ abreyd
6LY'v29'S 689'286'L - - - 200'9LL'e GEL'0es L6V'689 jquawwiaacbialu
vL2'192 - - - - - - v12'192 sjuuad pue sasuao
gov'sor'st ¢ - $ vEL'ES8 $  6S0'WVO'L S - $ - $ - $ ei1z6LL'9L S SJUBLUISSISSE PUB SIXE]
anuaAay
spuny spung pund xej pung pung pung pung pundg
|BJUDWILIBA0S)  [BJUBWILIBAOS)  suasn AN Xej sajes safo8y xej uswdojaasg |eJaudn
jejol B340 N aJnseay o anseapw jeJouan seo Aunwuwon
dia 'g Bujsnoy
2102 ‘0€ aunp papug Jeajp

SpuN4 |EJUAWILIBACL)
sasuejeg pung ul abueyn pue ‘sainjipuadxy ‘@nusAsy Jo JusWIEIS

SINVTHLOWAVIN 40 NMOL



(221‘G82'€)

689'€te

292'00E L1

LLY'02Y

(8ve'802°t1)

(152°115')

$

6

JuaWaje]s [eroueuy Siy} jo Led [eibajul ue aie SjusLWB]E]S [eloueul o} sejou buifuedwoooe ay |

(g abed) SalIAIY [BIUSWUIAA0Y) - S1OSSY 19N Ul abuey)

"SBIIAIOE. JO

JUSLLIA]B]S By} UO saliAloe [ejuawuiancb ulyim papodal st spuny 81AIas [Bulalul JO

SBIIAIOE UIBHaD JO 8NUBASI JoU 8| "SpuUny [ENPIAIPUI O} SelIAlOe sijauaq aakoldwa

pue |ood Jojow jo }s00 8y} abieyd o} Juswabeuet AQ pasn ale spunj 8dIAIBS [BUIBIY|
spun4 a21AI9S jeuldu|

uononpay pajenobap - piemy uswbpnp yinsme

‘stuay pare|al pue jgap wisl 6uo| jo Juswiesl)
By} Ul S80UBIBYIP 358U} JO 109)48 18U 8y} S| JUNOWE SIY| "S8NIAO. JO Juslsle)s
ay] Ul paziuoWe PUe pallajep aJ. JUNOLWE S8y} sealaym ‘pansst isiy s! 1gap
USUM S} JEILUIS PUB ‘SIUNOooSIp ‘swniwaid ‘S}s00 8JUeNSst Jo s}0ayd ay) Hodal
spuny [ejuawuIaAob ‘osly 'sjasse jau Jo 108ye Aue sey ‘Janamoy ‘uonoesuel)
JaylleN ‘spuny juswiuianob jo saoinosal [elouBUY JUBLIND BU} SSWNSUOD 1q8p Wid}
6uo| auyy Jo [ediouud sy} Jo JuswAedal ay} ajlym ‘spuny [ejusLILIBA0E 0} saaInosal
[el1ouBUl JUBLIND sepiaoid (sases| ‘sueo| ‘sdod “al) 1gep wis} Buo jo souenss] 8y |
sjuawied 19ad

‘pouad Juaund ay} Ul ‘suoiisodsip Jo 1au ‘uoyeloaldap papasoxe

sAepno [endeo yoiym Aq Junowre ayy st sy "esuadxa uonetoaidsp se pauodal

puUB SaAl| [NjosN PaJeLNSa Ji8Y] 18A0 PaJeOo|[e Si S}JesSe 88y} JO 1500 8y} SalIMOe JO

JusLBle]s U Ul ‘4eAemo} ‘sainypuadxe se sAe(ino [eyded Hodal Spunj [BJUSWIUIBA0Y)
sjassy jenden

:Buimojjo} ay) Jo asneaaq Jualayip aJe (1| abed)
SON)IAIIO. JO JUIWIBJE}S BU) Ul SAINANOE |ejuawuidnob Joy papodas sjunowy

(g obed) spund |elJUBWILIBAOY) - Saduejeg pund ui abuey)

210¢ ‘0€ aunp papu3 JeaA

S3NIANIOY JO JUSWISIEIS 3y} O} SPUN |BIUSWIUISA0Y) JO saduejeq pund

u1 abuey) pue ‘sainypuadx3 ‘@nuanay JO JuUsWLeIS 3Y} JO Uole!IduoddY
SIIVT HLONWVYIN 40 NMOL



ol

6.£'282'LL $ 950'l65'9 $ 815 ¢ 8€5'065'9 $
0./2'699'8 (9s1'262'E) 816 (¥29'L62°¢)
601'295'C cLe'eye’s - z1Le'8v8’'s
8.9'051 691'286'€ 144 S¥1'286'¢
eLL'Le 8/9'611 - 8/9'611
cLLLe €eL'e - [ ANA)

- 656'901 - GS6'901
G95°'6Z1 L6¥'298'¢E 144 29%'298°¢E
- 196'06.'¢ - 196'06.°'¢
L0} IWwe'y - we'y

- 226'8¢€ - 126'8¢€
61611 95e'8e 144 2ee'se
/S0'68€E°L} G22'eL5°0) [4A4:] £89'2/5'01
601°'295'2 #56'6€0°'01 - $56'6€0'01
601'295'C gLL'6vv'6 - 8./.'6v1'6
- 9LE'PPS - 9LE'vYs

- 098'st - 098'sH
8¥6'128'8 L.2'EES (44 62.'CES
L02'9.8'Y - - -
000'622') - - -

oelL'zey L¥0'9 - 1$0'9
l20'16 250'6.¢€ l L50'6.2€
¥86'.v9'C ¢ cli'srt ¢ 1ps ¢ 1E9'pL $
Spun4g a8djaesg spundg —cmEomm:ms_ u._on.__<

jeusajuy esudiajuy lypuer
= SelIARdY 18301

|ejuaLULLIOA0D) saIANOY adA)-sseuisng

uaweje)s ejoueuy siyj jo ped [eibejul ue aie SjuaWIBIR)S [eroueuly 0} sajou BuiAuedwoooe ay |

sjasse Jau [Bjo|
papusaiun

198p paje|al 4o Jau 'sjasse jepded u) pajsany|

S19SSY 18N

sauiqel) jejol
S3niiqey) Jusunouou (ejo|
saoussqe pajesuadwo)
juaLunouou - ajqeied ajoN
:Safjiqel| JUBLINOUON
Sajiiiqel) Jusuno [ejo |
puny jeJauab - sueo| punyaju|
sasuasqe pajesuadwon
juaung - ajgeded sjoN
ajqefed sjunoooy
‘sapiiqel) lJuaun)
seniqen

sjasse |ejo |
S)asSE JuaLnoduou jejo|
uoperoaidap Jo Jau ‘sjasse [epden
pajeioasdap Bujaq jou sjasse |eyden
a|qen1asal ajoN
:S]9SSE JUBLINJOUON
S}asse Jualnd [Bjo|
puny jesauab - sueo| pungiayu)
SUBO| PUNJL)U|
sasuadxa piedaid
sjuelb pue suUNodVe - SIqEAISISY
SjUBWISaAUL pue yseD
:S]9SSE Jualun)
sjessy

210z ‘og sunp
S}9SSY I8N jJo Juswajels
spun4 liejaudold

SINVT HLOWIWVYIN O NMOL



L

juawaje)s [eioueul siy) jo ued jeibaju) ue aie sjuswajels [eloueuy o} sajou BuiAuedwosoe ay |

6/€ZE2LL $ 9c0'L6S'9  $ 816 ¢ 8€5'065'0 $ Jeaf jo pus - sjassy JoN
069'810'L L 092'8/5'9 06%'L 0.2'9.S'9 Bujuuibaq - sjessy JaN
689'ELZ 96.'C) (226) 89.'c1 sjessy 8N ui sbueyo
(zel'ol) (009'6€) - (009'6€) (1no) siaysues)
- LLL'69L - LL1'69L ul siaysuel )
- #98'652 - #98'662 sjuesb [eyden
LLb'v8e (sv9'2L6) (zL6) (€29'L26) siajsuel | fsuoynquiuoy a1ojag awoau)
L6¥'EE (292'2) S (z/2'L) (sesuadxa) anuaaai Bupeladouou |ejo |
- (0z6'29) - (0z6'29) asuadxa Jsasaju|
¥61'61 £51'09 S 8vL'09 anuaaal Jey10
L6C'YL - - - sBujuses Juaunsaau|
(sasuadxg) enuaasy Bupesadouopn
026'062 (8/8'v96) (226) (L06'€96) (sso1) awoodu) Bupesado
£/9'v10'2 8€€'P29'C 108'€ 1£5'029' sasuadxa Bugesado 2301
/650G 6E€Z'v6E'L - 6£2'¥6E'L uoneroaideqg
0£6'€08 666'G88 6L0'1 9€6'¥88 suoyjeiado pue aaueudjuie
96.'v0. 44N 44> 88.'C 9Ge'Lye S82IAIS |SUU0SIad
sasuadxg Bupesado
£65'692'2 09Y'659'} 0€8'C 0€£9'959'} anuaaay bunesado ejo|
- 000'000'} - 000'000'} sjuesb bupeiado
£66'692'C $ 09¥'659 $ o0€8C ¢ 0£9'959 ¢ sa1as Joj sabiey)d
anuaaay Bunelado
spundg spund juswabeuey Hoday
991A19S |eulalu| astdiajugz llpue-]
- SaIAndY lejoL
|BJUSLIUIBAOL) S9I)IAOY adAj-ssauisng

Z10Z '0€ aunr papug Jeaj

sjassy 39N ul abuey) pue ‘sasuadxg ‘enuanay Jo Juswajels
spung Aiejanidoad

SEIMVT HLONWNYIN 40 NMOL



cl

Juswayels [ejoueuy siy) jo ped [esbejur ue ale sjuswaje)s [ejoueuly o} sejou buiAuedwoooe ay |

Sv0'LLL $ L1'9LE g (gse'l) §  giE'llE $
(2£5'9) (zze'o6) (182) (Lv0'06)
(z6g'L8) - - -

101'85 §l0'L€ - 510'L€

LY6'S0S 6EZ'V6E'L - 6E2'V6E"L

026052 $ (828'p06) $ (u8) $ (106'c96) $

¥8S'ip9'c  $ ziL'8pL $ LpS $ 1£9'Ipl $

980'6£5'9 99.'vZL veL't zi6'zeL
(z0s'168'E) 90v'€e (esz't) 659'P2

162'vL S S -

(zz1'909'v) (062'280°L) - (062'280°L)

- (0z6'L9) - (0z6°29)

- (,20'89) - (220°'89)
(ezz'sve) (oL1'621) - (ot1's21)

v6L'61 051'09 - 05109
(€60'9.€'Y) - - -

- (080°261L'L) - (080°261'4)

- £0.'61LE - £0.'61€
(222'0L) 115'62L - L15'62L
(zzL'ol) (009'6E) - (009'6E)

- LL1'69L - 121'692

Sy0'LLL pLL'9LE (8se'L) TLE'LLE
- 000°'000't - 000°000't
(¥0'vL2) - - -

(518°'cL5) (966'G.6) (6L0'L) (226'v26)
(96.'v02) (L2¥'vpe) (L20'€) (9se'1¥E)
ooL'tze's ¢ 1£5'969 $ 28 ¢ S0.'€69 $
spung a9jA8g spung juawobeuey Hodi)y
lewssju) asudiajuy liypue
- SBRIAROY 1ejol,
|ejuswWiLLIaA0S) sen|Anoy adAl-ssaujsng

(pasn) papinoid yseo joN
s|qeded sjunoaoe u| (aseasoap) asealou|
sesuadxa piedasd u) aseasoap (asealou))

sajqeaiedal U asealoap (asealou))
sjesodsip pue uoneiaidag
‘sjusupsnipe uone||UCcIey
(21 9bed) (ss07) swoou) Bugesadp
sisAjeuy sepiApoy Bupeledo

Jeak Jo pus - sjusjeainba yseo pue ysen
Buluuibaq - sjusjeainbe yseo pue yses
yseo uj (aseasseq) aseasou) jJoN

sBujwes Jusuiseau)
saARaY Bupseau

(pasn) papinoid yseo JoN

suonebijqo jgap uo pied Jsaseliu|

suonebijqo 1gap Jo JuswAheday

sjesse |ejidseo jo aseyand

PeAIa08J ysea Jayl0o

papiaoid ueo) pungaju|

saueApe punj |esaueb jo Juswhedey

sjuesb [ejided woyy speedoid
sapiARoY Bujoueuly pejejey 1 |eyden

(pasn) papirosd used JoN
(yno) sieysues]
Ul sigjsuelt
seniAnoy Bujsueuid jeydesuon

(pasn) papinoid yseos 1oN
sjuelb Bupesado woly paaiedal ysen

swie|o Jyeuaq 10 pied ysed

suonesado B soueusjuiew Joj pied ysen

saojases aakojdwe 1oy pied ysen

SIBLWIOISND WO} PaAIBdal Ysed
sapAnoy Bupesedo

(404 a3asn) A8 A3AIAOYd SMOTd HSYD

Z10Z ‘0S aunp papus Jes)
SMO]4 USED JO Juswalels
spun4 Aiejandoiy

SAMVYT HLONWRYIN 30 NMOL



€l
Juswajejs jejoueuy sy} jo ped eibajul ue sle sjuswaje)s [eloueuy o} sejou Buikueduosoe ay |

66V'GLS'Y ¢ ISMu | ul p|oH S}9ssY 19N

L62°/99 saiiqel |01
160'8v9 Sa)e YjoWwwWwel 4O UMO| - sjqeAed sueo| aoueApY
091'61 ajqeked syunoooy
saniiqer

95.'28L's SjosSE |Bj0 |
Sb6°'LC S9|qeAI89a. SJUNOIIY
G69'vOV'L wabe |eosy ym ysen
oLL'osL'e ¢ SJUBLLISaAUI pUB YseD
sjassy

Zioz ‘og aunr

spun4 Aouaby

saijiiqel pue sjassy Aieionpig jo Juswajels
SIMVYT HLONWWVYIN 40 NMOL



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

The notes to the financial statements include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
notes considered essential to fully disclose and fairly present the transactions and financial position of
the Town.

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Note 3 - Cash and Investments

Note 4 - Receivables

Note 5 - Capital Assets

Note 6 - Long Term Debt Obligations

Note 7 - Interfund Balances

Note 8 - Interfund Transfers

Note 9 - Retirement Plans

Note 10 - Accounts Payable

Note 11 - Net Assets and Fund Balance Designations

Note 12 - Liability, Workers’ Compensation, and Purchased Insurance

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies

Note 14 - Assessment District Debt

Note 15 - Dependence upon Tourism Industry

Note 16 - New Pronouncements

Note 17 - Subsequent Events
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Mammoth Lakes conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) as applicable to
governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Description of the Reporting Entity

The Town of Mammoth Lakes, and the Mammoth Lakes Municipal Service Corporation, comprise the
reporting entity. Although these entities are legally separate from each other, they are presented on a
blended basis as part of the primary government because their governing boards consist exclusively of
all five members of the Town Council. Under the criteria in GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by
GASB No. 39, these entities meet the criteria for inclusion within the Town's financial reports. Financial
information for the Town of Mammoth Lakes Municipal Service Corporation is blended with the Town of
Mammoth Lakes financial statements. The Town has no discretely presented component units.

Mammoth Lakes Municipal Service Corporation - this corporation was organized on August 1, 1989,
pursuant to the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporations Law of the State of California, solely for the
purpose of providing assistance to the Town by acquiring, constructing, improving, developing and
installing certain real and personal property together with appurtenances and appurtenant work for the
use, benefit and enjoyment of the public. The Corporation was formed at the request of the Town to
assist in lease financing of certain capital improvement projects. The Corporation's financial data and
transactions are included within the Debt Service Fund. Oversight responsibility is determined by such
criteria as financial interdependency, selection of governing authority and designation of management,
budget control and the ability to significantly influence operations in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 14, as amended by GASB No. 39.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenue includes (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included among
program revenue are reported instead as general revenue. Expenses reported for functional activities
include allocated indirect expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the later are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Fund Financial Statements

The accounting system of the Town is organized and operated on the basis of separate funds, each of
which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories.
A fund is considered major if it is the primary operation fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

o total assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental fund or
enterprise fund are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type.

o total assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or
enterprise fund are at least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise
funds combined.

The government has determined that a fund is important to the financial statement user. The funds of
the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Fund Types
Governmental funds are the funds through which most general government functions typically are
financed. The Town maintains the following fund types:

e General Fund - the general fund accounts for all unrestricted resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.

¢ Special Revenue Funds - these funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
resources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

e Debt Service Funds - these funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the repayment of general long-term debt obligation payments for principal, interest and related
costs.

e Capital Projects Funds - these funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

e Proprietary Fund Types - proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are similar to
those found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income
and capital maintenance. The following are the Town's two proprietary fund types:

e (1) Enterprise Funds - these funds are established to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the Town is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The Mammoth
Yosemite Airport and the Long Valley Landfill are reported as enterprise funds.

¢ (2) Internal Service Funds - these funds are established to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the Town,
and to other government units on a cost reimbursement basis. The Town’s purchasing of
vehicles and equipment, and the self insurance employee benefit program, is reported as internal
service funds.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Fiduciary Fund Types - fiduciary funds account for assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent
for individuals, private organizations, and other units of governments. The Town's funds included
in this category are as follows:

Expendable Trust Funds - these funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as the
governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting.
Expendable trust funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent.

Agency Funds - these funds account for assets held by the Town as trustee or agent for
individuals, private organizations, assessment districts, or other governmental units and/or other
funds.

The Major Funds are as follows:

@)

General Fund - this fund is the primary general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Housing and Community Development Fund - this fund is used to account for restricted-use
financial resources received from federal, state and county governments, for the purpose of
providing affordable housing within the community.

Gas Tax Fund - this fund is used to account for restricted use financial resources received from
federal, state and county governments, for street related expenditures.

Development Impact Fees (DIF) General Facilities Fund - this fund is used to account for
restricted use financial resources received from community development applicants which is used
to relieve the additional financial burdens placed upon the Town'’s facilities, created both indirectly
and directly from additional real estate developments.

Measure R - this fund is used to account for restricted use financial resources received from a
voter approved additional one-half of one percent retail transactions and use tax, to be used for
planning, construction, operation, maintenance, programming, and administration of all Town
recreation facilities and programs, trails and parks managed by the Town.

Measure U - this fund is used to account for restricted use financial resources received from a
voter approved 2.5% utility users tax, to be used for the purposes of planning, construction,
operation, maintenance, programming and administration of facilities and projects for mobility,
recreation, and arts and culture.

Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus applied. The Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, and both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus. The accounting objectives of the economic measurement focus are the
determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash

flows.

All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are

reported.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used, as appropriate. All governmental funds utilize a “current
financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally
included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available
spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

The proprietary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus. Proprietary fund equity is
classified as net assets.

Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement
focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets, and in the Statement of Activities, both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the “accrual basis of accounting.” Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred and the amount of obligation is ascertainable. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange
takes place.

On the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the “modified accrual basis of
accounting.” Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when “measurable
and available.” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Revenue
which is susceptible to accrual includes property taxes and special assessments that are levied for and
due for the fiscal year and collected within 60 days after year-end. Licenses, permits, fines, penalties,
charges for services and miscellaneous revenue are recorded as governmental fund type revenue when
received in cash because they are not generally measurable until actually received. Revenue from
taxpayer assessed taxes, such as sales taxes, are recognized in the accounting period in which they
became both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. Grant revenue,
which is normally reimbursements of expenses under contractual agreements, is recorded as a
receivable when earned rather than when susceptible to accrual. Generally, this occurs when authorized
expenditures are made under the grant program or contractual agreement. Expenditures are recognized
when the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for un-matured interest on long-term debt in the
governmental funds, which is recognized when due.

Proprietary funds use the “accrual basis of accounting” which records the financial effect on an enterprise
of transactions and other events and circumstances that have cash consequences for an enterprise in
the periods in which those transactions, events and circumstances occur rather than only when cash is
received or paid by the enterprise.

Budgetary Data

General Budget Policies - the Town maintains budgetary controls of which the objective is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approval by the Town Council.
Budgetary control for operations is maintained at the department level by individual funds. Budgetary
control for capital improvement projects (i.e., project-length financial plans) is maintained at the individual
project level by fund. The Town’s budgeted expenditure authority lapses at the end of each fiscal year.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

However, outstanding purchase order commitments may be re-appropriated for the subsequent fiscal
year upon Town Council approval. This approval is generally limited to capital improvement projects.

Budget Basis of Accounting - budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB and
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). The Budgetary Comparison Schedules
of the General Fund and Major Funds present comparisons of legally adopted budget amounts (both the
original budget and final budget), and actual amounts, on the budgetary basis. The budgeting basis is
substantially equivalent to the Town's accounting basis; thus no reconciliation between the two is
considered necessary.

Other Accounting Policies

Cash and Investments

The Town follows the requirements of GASB 3, as amended by GASB 31 and GASB 40, in reporting
cash and investments at fair value and disclosing risks related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk,
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, as applicable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses consist of fuel, vehicle parts and expendable supplies which are physically counted
annually and valued at cost on the weighted average method, which approximates fair value.

Capital Assets
Capital assets used in governmental fund type operations are accounted for on the statement of net

assets. Public domain general capital assets (infrastructure) consisting of certain improvements other
than buildings, such as roads, sidewalks and bridges are capitalized prospectively starting July 1, 2003 in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34. Town policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting
capital assets starting at $5,000. Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures of the general, special
revenue and capital project funds financial statements, and as capital assets in the government-wide
financial statements to the extent the Town’s capitalization threshold is met. Donated assets are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Property, plant and equipment acquired for proprietary funds are capitalized in the respective fund to
which it applies and are stated at their cost. Where cost could not be determined from the available
records, estimated historical cost was used to record the estimated value of the assets.

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets
which range from 4 to 20 years for equipment and vehicles, and 20 to 50 years for buildings and
improvements. Land, art and treasurers are not considered exhaustible, therefore are not being
depreciated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

Receivables and Payables

Internal balances representing lending/borrowing transactions between funds outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are reported as either “due to/due from other funds” (amounts due within one year),
“advances toffrom other funds” (non-current portions of interfund lending/borrowing transactions), or
“loans to/from other funds” (long-term lending/borrowing transactions as evidenced by loan agreements).
Advances and loans to other funds are offset by a fund balance reserve in applicable governmental
funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation, and are not expendable available financial
resources. Property, sales, use, and utility user taxes related to the current fiscal year are accrued as
revenue and accounts receivable, and considered available if received within 60 days of year end.
Federal and State grants are considered receivable and accrued as revenue when reimbursable costs
are incurred under the accrual basis of accounting in the government-wide statement of net assets.

The amount recognized as revenue under the modified accrual basis of accounting is limited to the
amount that is deemed measurable and available. The Town considers these taxes available if they are
received during the period when settlement of prior fiscal year accounts payable and payroll charges
normally occur. Grants, entitiements or shared revenue is recorded as receivables and revenue in the
general, special revenue and capital projects funds when they are received or susceptible to accrual.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to reflect
bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the direct write-off method is not materially different from
the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been followed.

Compensated Absences

The Town utilizes the general fund and proprietary funds to account for its compensated absences.
Resources have been set aside to cover short-term and long-term liabilities. The Town's method of
calculating the liability is in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, except that additional accruals for
salary-related payments associated with the payment of compensated absences, for example, the
employer’s share of pension contributions and social security tax, have not been accrued as that amount
is not considered significant or material to the financial statements taken as a whole. Comprehensive
leave pay is payable to employees at the time the leave is taken or upon termination of employment.
Comprehensive leave is payable for any type of employee leave, and may not exceed 1,040 hours
cumulative. Any excess leave is paid to an employee at the end of each fiscal year. In addition, an
employee may request a pay out of comprehensive leave twice a year but must maintain a balance of
240 hours to receive a pay out.

Property Taxes

Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the County level and
consist of secured, unsecured and utility tax rolls. The following is a summary of major policies and
practices relating to property taxes:

> Property Valuations - are established by the Assessor of Mono County for the secured and
unsecured property tax rolls; the utility property tax roll is valued by the California State Board of
Equalization. Under the provisions of Article XIlIA of the State Constitution (Proposition 13,
adopted by the voters on June 6, 1978), properties are assessed at 100% of full value. From this
base of assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited to a maximum of 2%.
However, increase to full value is allowed for property improvements or upon change in
ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations and is subject to annual
reappraisal.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

>

Tax Levies - are limited to 1% of full assessed value which results in a tax rate of $1.00 per $100
assessed valuation under the provisions of Proposition 13. Tax rates for voter-approved
indebtedness are excluded from this limitation.

Tax Levy Dates - are attached annually on January 1, preceding the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year. Taxes are
levied on both real and unsecured personal property. Liens against real estate, as well as the tax
on personal property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal or change in ownership.

Tax Collections - are the responsibility of the Mono County's tax collector. Taxes and
assessments on secured and utility rolls, which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid
in two installments: The first is due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid
by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid
by April 10. Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against real property
unless the taxes become delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, which is
delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year. Significant penalties are imposed by the
County for late payments.

Tax Levy Apportionments - due to the nature of the Town-wide maximum levy, it is not possible to
identify general-purpose tax rates for specific entities. Under State legislation adopted
subsequent to the passage of Proposition 13, apportionments to local agencies are made by
each County auditor-controller based primarily on the ratio that each agency represented of the
total Town-wide levy for the three fiscal years prior to fiscal year 1979.

Property Tax Administration Fees - the State of California fiscal year 1990-91 Budget Act
authorized Counties to collect an administrative fee for its collection and distribution of property
taxes.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

The Town'’s net assets are classified as follows on the government-wide statement of net assets:

(@]

Invested in Capital assets, Net of Related Debt - represents the Town’s total investment in capital
assets reduced by any outstanding debt used to acquire these assets.

Restricted Net Assets - includes resources that the Town is legally or contractually obligated to
spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Unrestricted Net Assets - represents resources derived from sources without spending
restrictions, are used for transactions relating the general operations of the Town, and may be
used at the discretion of those charged with governance to meet current expenses or obligations
for any purpose.

Fund balance designations are classified on the governmental funds balance sheet as follows:

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact or (b), not in spendable form such as long term notes receivable.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution,
external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)

¢ Committed - amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the Town Council, to establish, modify or rescind a fund balance commitment.

e Assigned - amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, as determined by
a formal action or policy of the Town Council or its appointed official.

e Unassigned - the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
Budgetary Information

The Town follows these annual procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

The Town Manager submits to the Town Council a proposed draft budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The
Town Council reviews the proposed budget at special scheduled sessions which are open to the public.
The Council also conducts a public hearing on the proposed budget to obtain comments from interested
persons. Prior to July 1, the budget is adopted by minute action of the Town Council. From the effective
date of the budget, which is adopted and controlled at the department level, the amounts stated therein
as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various Town departments. The Town Council
may amend the budget by minute action during the fiscal year. The Town Manager may authorize
transfers from one object or purpose to another within the same department. All appropriations lapse at
year end.

Revenue Limitations Imposed By California Proposition 218

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the Town's ability to
impose, increase, and extend taxes, assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or extended taxes,
assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, require voter approval before they
can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees are
subject to the voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future years by the voters.

Deficit Fund Balances

Due to the Town incurring costs in advance of receiving grant awards and other reimbursements,
revenue which it expects to recover in the future from grants and other sources, the following funds
incurred deficits in their ending fund balances:

General facilities DIF fund 3 2,410,803
DIF administration overhead fund 554,858
DIF law enforcement fund 629,391
DIF storm drains fund 611,085
DIF circulation (streets) fund 1,052,976

$ 5,259,113
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Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)

Cash Deficit Balances by Fund
The following governmental activities funds reported year end cash deficit balances:

Parks maintenance fund $ 8,938
Housing & community development fund 311,165
General facilities DIF fund 644
Capital projects fund 971,091
DIF administration fund 458
DIF law enforcement fund 1,092
DIF storm drains fund 1,473

$ 1,294,861

Note 3 - Cash and Investments

The Town follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for restricted funds
required to be held by outside custodians, fiscal agents or trustees under the provisions of bond
indentures. Cash and investments as of June 30, 2012 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assets

Cash and investments $ 7,376,833
Restricted cash with fiscal agent 206,256
7,583,089
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Cash and investments 3,750,116
Investments with fiscal agent 1,404,695
5,154,811

Total $ 12,737,900

Cash and Investments consist of the following:

Deposits with financial institutions $ 867,316
Investment with Local Agency Investment Fund 10,259,631
Investments by fiscal agents 1,610,953

Total $ 12,737,900

Collateral and Categorization Requirements
At fiscal year end, the Town’s carrying amount of demand deposits was $873,550 and the bank account

balances were $1,678,078. The difference of $804,528 represented outstanding checks and deposits in
transit. Of the total bank deposit balance, $250,000 was insured by Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) and $1,428,078 collateralized in accordance with California Government Code
Sections 53600 - 53609.

Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized under provisions of the Town’s
investment policy adopted September 1, 2010, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California
Government Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the investment policy that address
concentration or maximum percentages and maturity.
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (continued)

Maximum Maximum
Permitted Investments/Deposits Percentages Maturity
Investment Type A:
Securities of the US Government Unlimited 5 years
Certificates of Deposit Unlimited 5 years
Commercial Paper (A-1, P-1, F-1, only) 25% 270 days
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $40,000,000 n/a
Passbook Deposits n/a n/a
Investment Type B:
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 30% 5 years
Bankers Acceptances 40% 180 days
Repurchase Agreements n/a 1 year
Mutual Funds 15% 5 years
Medium Term Notes 30% 5 years

Type A investments do not require any specific approval of the Town Council. All Type B investments
require a specific resolution of the Town Council prior to the investment purchase/deposit.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Town of Mammoth manages its exposure
to interest rate risk is by investing with LAIF, who purchases a combination of shorter term and medium
term investments, but is generally due on demand to the Town.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the Town contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
single issuer beyond that stipulated by the California government code. Nearly 81% of cash and
investments managed by the Town at year end were invested in LAIF.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. The Town's investment policy limits credit risk by requiring compliance with the
California Government Code for investment of public funds.

The credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The California government code and the Town’s investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
deposits, other than the following provision for deposits:

“The California government code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure Town deposits by pledging first trust
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.”
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Note 3 - Cash and Investments (concluded)

At June 30, 2012, the Town had $1,428,078 in financial institutions that was not covered by the FDIC,
but was covered by collateralized securities of the financial institutions where the deposits were
maintained.

The credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California government code and the Town’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for investments.

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Participation in an External Investment Pool

The Town is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF, established in
1977, is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 and under the day to day
administration of the California State Treasurer. There is a five member Local Investment Advisory
Board that is chaired by the State Treasurer. LAIF determines fair value of its investment portfolio based
on market quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available, and on
amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available. As of
June 30, 2012, LAIF had 2,693 participants and approximately $22 billion in investments. LAIF is part of
the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA) and under the control of the State Treasurer's Office,
which is audited by the Bureau of State Audits on an annual basis. Audited financial statements of PMIA
may be obtained from the California State Treasurer’s web site at www.treasurer.ca.gov.

The fair value of the Town’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements
at amounts based upon the Town’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Note 4 - Receivables

At June 30, 2012, accounts and other receivables as reported in the Statement of Net Assets - Total
column, consist of the following:

Receivables from

Transient lodging taxes $ 2,009,674
Grant reimbursements 2,066,899
Other reimbursements 229,040
Charges for services 52,373
Sales taxes 136,000
Utility users taxes 50,833
Other receivables 123,836
Airport rents 43,147
Interest earned 39,776

$ 4,751,578
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Note 4 - Receivables (continued)

The Town participates in “Housing Rehabilitation and Affordable Housing Loan Programs” designed to
encourage construction and improvement to low-to-moderate income housing or other similar projects.
Under these programs, grants and loans are provided under favorable terms to homeowners and real
estate developers who agree to spend these funds in accordance with the Town's loan agreement terms.
Although these loans are expected to be repaid in full, their balance in the governmental funds balance
sheet has been offset by a deferred revenue account, as they are not expected to be repaid during the
next fiscal year, nor in the foreseeable future. At June 30, 2012, notes receivables as reported in the

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Statement of Net Assets - Governmental Activities column consist of the following:

Notes Receivable

Aspen Village housing $ 900,000
Bristlecone Apartments 977,684
Inyo Mono Advacates 820,532
Aspen Village housing 2,000,000
Aspen Village housing 3,412,500
Jefferias Apariments 3,412,500
CalHFA housing grant loan 343,907
Mammoth Lakes Housing, Inc. 853,600

$ 12,720,723

Note 5 - Capital Assets

Governmental-type capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Non-depreciable Assets
Land
Construction-in-progress

Depreciable Assels
Buildings and structures
Streets and roads
Storm drains
Vehicles and equipment

Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciable assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ Ending

Balance Completions Adjustments Balance
$ 8790013 $ - $ - $ 8,790,013
8,784,920 - (5,120,473) 3,664,447
17,574,933 - (5,120,473) 12,454,460
19,280,424 746,367 - 20,026,791
178,391,417 120,014 - 178,511,431
14,178,357 358,378 - 14,536,735
881,454 988,524 - 1,869,978
212,731,652 2,213,283 - 214,944,935
(135,944,096) (9,689,928) - (145,634,024)
76,787,556 (7,476,645) - 69,310,911
$ 94,362,489 $ (7,476,645) $ (5,120,473) $ 81,765,371
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (continued)

Internal Service Fund capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ Ending
Balance Completions Adjustments Balance
Depreciable Assets
Vehicles and equipment $ 9229156 $ 260,156 $ (113,708) $ 9,375,606
Accumulated depreciation (6,405,323) (505,947) 102,773 (6,808,497)
Total capital assets, net $ 2823833 $§ (245,791) $ (10,933) $ 2,567,109

Reported in the Statement of Net Assets are the combined capital assets of the governmental-type and
internal service funds, as follows:

Internal
Governmental Service Total
Capital assets not being depreciated $ 12,454,460 $ - $ 12,454,460
Capital assets, net of depreciation 69,310,911 2,567,109 71,878,020
81,765,371 2,567,109 $ 84,332,480

Business-type capital asset activity of the Mammoth Yosemite Airport for the year was as follows:

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ Ending
Balance Completions Adjustments Balance
Non-depreciable Assets
Land $ 544,316 $ - $ - $ 544,316
Depreciable Assets
Buildings and runway 14,657,354 94,149 - 14,751,503
Vehicles and equipment 2,507,187 34,968 - 2,542,155
17,164,541 129,117 - 17,293,658
Accumulated Depreciation {6,449,640) (1,394,240) - (7,843,880)
Depreciable assets, net 10,714,901 (1,265,123) - 9,449,778
Total capital assets, net $ 11,259,217  $ (1,265,123) § - $ 9,994,094
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Note 6 - Long Term Debt Obligations

Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits which can be converted to cash at
termination of employment. No expenditure is reported for these amounts in the governmental funds
financial statements. However, in the statement of activities the expenditure is allocated to each function
based on usage. Vested compensated absences payable in accordance with various collective
bargaining agreements at year end was reported in the statement of net assets in the amount of
$551,339 for governmental activities, and $162,846 for business-type activities.

Loans Payable - Governmental Activities

On August 16, 2004, the Municipal Finance Corporation loaned the Town $500,000 for financing
construction of the Visitors Welcome Center. Principal and interest payments in the amount of $40,600
are due semi-annually on January 15 and July 15, with interest at 3.5% per annum. The debt matured in
fiscal year 2011-12. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was paid in full.

Between 1999 and 2001 the Town borrowed $1,182,000 from the California State Water Resources
Control Board's Revolving Loan Fund, for storm drain improvements. Principal and interest payments in
the amount of $79,000 are due each January, including interest at 2.5% per annum. This debt matures
in fiscal year 2019-20. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $501,461.

Year Ending State Water Resources Control Board

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 66,449 $ 12,538 § 78,987
2014 68,111 10,877 78,988
2015 69,813 9,174 78,987
2016 71,559 7,429 78,988
2017 73,348 5,640 78,988
2018-2020 152,181 5,733 157,914

$ 501,461 $ 51,391 $ 552,852

Certificates of Participation

On June 1, 2000, the Town issued $2,470,000 in Certificates of Participation to purchase land. Interest
is due semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, with principal payments due June 1 annually. Total
annual payments are approximately $200,000, with an average interest rate of 6.43%. The debt matures
in fiscal year 2025-26. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $1,720,000.

On January 7, 2004, the Town issued $1,370,000 in Certificates of Participation to purchase land for an
affordable/workforce housing project. Principal and interest payments in the amount of $83,300 are due
semi-annually on January 27 and July 27, with interest at 3.8% per annum. The debt matures in fiscal
year 2014-15. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $317,763.

On January 8, 2004, the Town issued $845,500 in Certificates of Participation of which $422,750 is
taxable to the lender. The COP was issued to purchase land for an affordable/workforce housing project.
Principal and interest payments in the amount of $53,000 are due semi-annually on January 27 and July
27. The interest rate for the non-taxable portion of the COP is 3.89% per annum, while the interest on
the taxable portion is 5.65% per annum. The taxable portion has been paid in full. The remaining debt
matures in year fiscal year 2014-15. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $205,637.
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Note 6 - Long Term Debt Obligations (continued)

Cettificates of Participation

Year 2000 2004 2004
Ending Land Land Land Total
June 30, Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 90,000 $ 155,821 $ 98,783 $ 344,604 $ 129,580 $ 474,184
2014 100,000 161,942 106,854 368,796 114,000 482,796
2015 100,000 - - 100,000 99,955 199,955
2016 100,000 - - 100,000 93,580 193,580
2017 115,000 - - 115,000 357,610 472,610
2018-2022 685,000 - - 685,000 116,820 801,820
2023-2025 530,000 - - 530,000 71,610 601,610

$ 1,720,000 $ 317,763 $ 205,637 $ 2,243,400 $ 983,155 $ 3,226,555

Loan Payable - Business type Activities

On September 14, 1998, the Town borrowed $500,000 from the State Department of Transportation for a
water system and taxi lane extension at the Mammoth Yosemite Airport. The loan is being amortized
over 17 years, with an interest rate of 5.05% per annum. The debt matures in fiscal year 2016-17. As of
June 30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $145,882.

Year Ending State Department of Transportation
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 38,927 $ 7,367 $ 46,294
2014 40,657 5,401 46,058
2015 42,388 3,348 45,736
2016 23,910 1,207 25,117

$ 145,882 $ 17,323 $ 163,205

Long term debt activity for the year was comprised of the following:

Beginning Additions Ending Due Within
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Certificates of participation $2,678479 $ - $ (435,079) $ 2,243,400 $ 344,604
Loans payable 606,171 - (104,710) 501,461 66,449
Compensated absences 537,004 14,335 - 551,339 137,835

$ 3,821,654 $ 14,335 $ (539,789) $ 3,296,200 $ 548,888

Business-type Activities

Loans payable $ 183,079 $ - $ (37,197) $ 145,882 3 38,927
Compensated absences 47,794 - (30,830) 16,964 4,241
$ 230873 $ - $ (68,027) $ 162,846 $ 43,168
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Note 6 - Long Term Debt Obligations (concluded)

Lawsuit Judgment

The Town was the defendant in litigation with a real estate developer for alleged breach of contract. In
2008, a jury awarded the developer $30 million in damages, and subsequently the presiding judge
awarded the prevailing party attorneys fees. In March 2011, the Town lost its appeal of this judgment
before the State Supreme Court. The Town settled with the claimant in September 2012 for
$29,500,434. The judgment amount is being amortized over a 24 year period. The first payment of
$2,523,286 is due in fiscal year 2012-13, with 23 subsequent annual payments of $2,000,000, principal
and interest at 5% per annum.

Year Ending Lawsuit Judgment Payment Schedule
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 2,523,286 $ - $ 2,523,286
2014 651,143 1,348,857 2,000,000
2015 683,700 1,316,300 2,000,000
2016 717,885 1,282,115 2,000,000
2017 753,779 1,246,221 2,000,000
2018-2022 4,373,360 5,626,640 10,000,000
2023-2027 5,581,638 4,418,362 10,000,000
2028-2032 7,123,742 2,876,258 10,000,000
2033-2035 7,091,901 908,099 8,000,000

$ 29,500,434 $ 19,022,852 $ 48,523,286

]
Operating Leases

On September 3, 2009, the Town entered into a real estate lease renewal amendment agreement for the
continuing occupancy of office space under a one hundred fifty (150) month term commencing
retroactively to April 1, 2009 at $14,396 per month until March 31, 2010. For the period from April 1,
2010 through September 30, 2011 the rent shall be adjusted in accordance with the consumer price
index (CPI). From October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012, the minimum monthly rent shall be
$21,000 per month, thereafter adjusting in accordance with the CPI.

On November 1, 2010, the Town entered into a real estate lease agreement for continuing occupancy of
the police department building under an eight year agreement with option for additional years, at an
average monthly base rent of $5,420 plus property taxes, insurance, utilities, and maintenance.

On August 25, 2011, the Town entered into a 60 month operating lease agreement for a temporary
structure installed at the airport, with lease payments of $1,758 per month.

Note 7 - Interfund Balances

In its efforts to become a destination year round resort, the Town has worked for years towards the
recently completed development of expanded airport facilities in order to accommodate larger aircraft,
and has worked closely with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) in order to achieve this goal.
Scheduled airline service commenced in the fall of 2008. The Town’s general fund loaned the Airport
enterprise fund the necessary capital funds to accomplish the required capital improvements. Formal
interest bearing loan agreements were established as required by GASB; however the ability of the
airport to repay its internal loans in the near future has been impaired due to current economic
conditions.

30



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 7 - Interfund Balances (continued)

The Town has developed a Fractional Assessment District that will capture much needed funding that
would otherwise be lost with the development of fractional ownership facilities. Because current State
law prohibits the Town from collecting transient occupancy taxes from owners of fractional development,
the Fractional Assessment District will provide a taxing mechanism in order to reduce the impact of these
facilities on the Town. The Town’s general fund loan agreement provides for loan repayment in future
years as new Fractional Developments are annexed into the District.

The repayment of loans by the capital project funds (including all developer impact fee loans) are
anticipated with future developer impact fee (DIF) revenue.

The Town reports interfund balances between many of its funds. Some of the balances are considered
immaterial and are aggregated into a single column or row. The sum of all balances presented in the
table agrees with the sum of interfund balances presented in the statements of net assets/balance sheet
for governmental funds, and for proprietary funds. These interfund balances have been eliminated in the
government-wide financial statements.

Interfund balances at June 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Due to the General fund from:

Airport funds $ 3,790,967
Capital projects funds 3,981,274
Fractional district agency funds 648,097

$ 8,420,338

Due to the Internal Service fund from:

General fund $ 4,376,207
DIF general facilities fund 1,275,000

$ 5,651,207

Note 8 - Interfund Transfers

The Town reports interfund transfers between many of its funds. Transfers are used to (1) move
revenue from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them, to the fund that statute or budget
requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from funds collecting the receipts,
to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenue
collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations. The Town accounts for its capital improvement and construction projects
primarily through its gas tax and capital project funds. Such expenditures are primarily funded from
general fund revenue, tax revenue, grants and developer impact fees. Transfers into the agency funds
are generally for street related expenditures. These transfers are reported in the fiscal period in which
the transactions are approved and recorded.

The following table reports operating transfers by fund type:
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Note 8 - Interfund Transfers (continued)

Operating transfers

Fund type in Out
General fund $ 11,256,676 $ 14,709,387
Gas tax fund 2,061,890 245,302
Capital projects funds 266,491 19,393
Measure R sales tax fund - 181,439
Nonmajor governmental funds 42,824 -
Debt service fund 715,903 121,442
Airport operating fund 253,135 39,600
Airport debt service fund 516,042 -
internal service fund - 70,722
Agency funds 274,324 -

$ 15,387,285 $ 15,387,285

Note 9 - Retirement Plans

Plan 1 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

All eligible full-time employees participate in the Town’s defined benefit pension plan, administered
through the California Public Employee's Retirement System (CalPERS), which provides retirement,
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The California Public Employees’ Retirement System is an agent multiple-employer plan
administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating
public employers within the State of California. A menu of benefit provision as well as other
requirements is established by State statutes within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The Town
selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those
benefits through local resolution (other local methods). CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the
CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Status and Progress

Non-public safety (miscellaneous plan) participants are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered
salary, while public safety (safety plan) employees are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered
salary. Town employees make the contributions required of themselves, on their behalf, and for their
account. The Town’s required contributions are based upon an actuarially determined rate. The 2011-
12 fiscal year rates were 18.7% for miscellaneous plan employees, and 29.3% for safety plan
employees, of annual covered payroll. The subsequent 2012-13 fiscal year rate is 20.1% for
miscellaneous plan employees, and 30.8% for safety plan employees, of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of plan members, and the Town, are established and may be amended by
CalPERS.

Annual Pension Cost

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Town’s total annual pension cost of $2,192,411 to CalPERS
was equal to the Town’s required and actual employer contributions of $1,187,085, and the employee
share of $1,005,326. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.
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Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

The actuarial assumptions included:

a 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses)

projected annual salary increases of 3.55% to 14.45% depending on age, service and type of
employment

an inflation rate of 3.0%

a payroll growth rate of 3.25%

individual salary growth merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an assumed
annual inflation growth of 3.0% and an annual production growth of 0.25%

YVVV VYV

Employer Side Fund

At the time of the Town joining the CalPERS risk pool, a side fund was created to account for the
difference between the funded status of the pool and the funded status of the Town’s two plans. At June
30, 2012 the side fund balances were $2,906,984 for the miscellaneous plan, and $1,266,889 for the
safety plan. Payments to the side fund are included in the monthly required employer contributions. For
the year ended June 30, 2012, the Town'’s total annual pension cost for the miscellaneous plan included
side fund payments of approximately $277,000, with approximately 12 years remaining for the
amortization period, and the Town’s total annual pension cost for the safety plan included side fund
payments of approximately $154,000, with approximately 8 years remaining for the amortization period.

The actuarial value of CalPERS’ risk pool assets was determined using techniques that smooth the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a fifteen-year period (smoothed
market value).

The contribution rate for normal cost is determined using the entry-age normal actuarial cost method, a
projected benefit cost method. It takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the
future as well as those already accrued.

Three-year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Year Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2009-10 $ 1,922,348 100% $ -0-
2010-11 $ 1,813,975 100% $-0-
2011-12 $ 2,192,411 100% $ -0-

Schedule of Funding Progress-Defined Benefit Pension Plans (unaudited)
The funded status of the plans, as of the most recent actuarial valuation dates, are as follows (in
millions):

Valuation Accrued Actuarial Market Value Funded Annual
Date Liability Value of of Assets Ratio Covered
Assets (AVA) (MVA) AVA MVA Payroll
Miscellaneous Plan
2.7% at age 55: $ 293 $ 225 §$ 20.3 76.7% 692% $ 4.8
Safety Plan
3.0% at age 50: $ 175 $ 144  $ 12.8 81.9% 732% $ 22
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Plan 2 - Retirement Enhancement Plan

Plan Description

All eligible full-time public safety employees are eligible to participate in the Town’s Retirement
Enhancement Plan, administered through the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS), which
provides additional retirement benefits to public safety employees above that provided from the CalPERS
defined benefit plan. Eligibility requirements are based upon years of employment, date of hire, and date
of birth which meets the requirements of a pension trust under California Government Code.

Plan Background

Type of Plan: 401(a) Tax-qualified Defined Benefit
Plan Effective Date: July 1, 2003

Benefit Level: 3.5% at age 55 Supplemental Plan
Eligibility: Full-Time Safety Employees

Full-Time Safety Management Employees
51 years of Age
10 Years of Service

Age Factor Enhancement

CalPERS and

Age at CalPERS 3% at Additional PARS PARS Combined
Retirement 50 Age Factor Age Factor Age Factor

51 3.00% 0.10% 3.10%

52 3.00% 0.20% 3.20%

53 3.00% 0.30% 3.30%

54 3.00% 0.40% 3.40%

55+ 3.00% 0.50% 3.50%

Funding Status and Progress

As of June 30, 2012 there were 18 active participants and 6 retired participants. For fiscal year 2011-12,
the Town contributed $133,740 to the plan; employees are not required to make contributions. The
following is the most recent actuarial valuation prepared on May 4, 2011:

Actuarial Annual Contribution
Valuation Accrued Value of Funded Covered As a % of
Date Liablility Assets (AVA) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30,2009 $ 1,626,198 $ 902,829 55.52% $ 2,132,648 6.76%

Plan 3 - Other Retirement Plan

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA) mandates that public sector employees who
are not members of their employer's existing retirement system as of January 1, 1992 be covered by
either Social Security (the Federal Insurance Contributions Act) or an alternative plan. The Town
contracted with the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) to administer a defined contribution plan
which covers all part-time, seasonal, temporary, and all employees not covered by another retirement
system. All eligible employees covered by the Plan are fully vested. Employer liabilities are limited to
the amount of current contributions.
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Plan 4 - Other Postretirement Benefit Plan

Plan Description

The Town provides retiree medical benefits to employees who (1) retire from the Town and (2) have paid
their employee share of retirement plan expense. Eligible retirees are entitled to the minimum CalPERS
medical benefit, which is currently $115 per month and expected to increase annually. Retirees may
select any retiree medical plan offered by CalPERS, including spouse or family coverage, but must incur
the cost of the premiums exceeding the above monthly benefit. The obligation of the Town to provide
these benefits is determined by agreements with the various employee bargaining groups. The Town’s
contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Town paid $26,718 in post employment
benefits for 22 retired employees who were eligible for benefits during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, and contributed $38,863 to the trust account with PARS.

The Town’s annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the Town’s annual OPEB costs for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and the changes in the Town’s net OPEB obligation.

Annual Required Contribution $ 62,430
Interest on the net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to the Annual Required Contribution -

Annual OPEB cost 62,430
Payments made 38,863
Increase in net OPEB obligation to be determined
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year to be determined
Net OPEB obligation - end of year to be determined

The Town'’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2012 $ 62,430 $ 38,863 $ 23,567

As of January 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was -0-% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $581,235, and the actuarial value of the Plan assets was $-0-,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $581,235. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $9,499,751 and the ratio of UAAL to the covered
payroll was 6.1%.
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Plan 4 - Other Postretirement Benefit Plan - continued

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Funding Progress

Annual Unfunded
Valuation Value of Entry Age  Unfunded Funding Covered Liability as a
Date Assets Accrued Liability Ratio Payroli % of Payroll
01/01/09 $ - $ - $ 581,235 %  $ 9,499,751 6.1%

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as
understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

in the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, the actuarial cost method use is Entry Age Normal (EAN) cost
method. Under the EAN cost method, the Plan’s Normal Cost is developed as a level percent of payroll
throughout the participant’s working lifetime. Entry age is based on current age minus years of service.
The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is the cumulative value on the valuation date of prior Normal Cost.
For retirees, the AAL is the present value of all projected benefits. The Unfunded AAL is being amortized
as a level dollar closed 30 years basis, as a level percent of payroll with a remaining amortization period
at of 30 years.

GASB Statement No. 45 requires the interest rate to represent the underlying expected return for the
source of funds used to pay benefits. The actuarial methods and assumptions included a 7.75% interest
rate, based on long-term historical returns for surplus funds invested pursuant to California Government
Code Sections 53601 et seq. Annual inflation and Aggregate Payroll are assumed to increase 3.25%
per annum. Both post-retirement benefit increases and the healthcare cost trend are assumed to
increase 4.14% per annum.
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At June 30, 2012, accounts and accrued expenses as reported in the Statement of Net Assets - Total
column consist of the following:

Accounts Payable for

Construction projects $ 403,040
Consultants 126,287
Supply vendors 163,983
Tourism and promotion 172,217
Transist 109,268
Workforce housing expenses 16,573
Compensation and benefits 443,890

$ 1,435,258

Note 11 - Net Assets and Fund Balance Designations

In accordance with the Town'’s implementation of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, fund balance designations with respect to governmental type funds
are reported in the following classifications:

e Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact or (b), not in spendable form such as long term notes receivable.

o Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution,
external resource providers, or through enabling legislation.

e Committed - amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the Town Council, to establish, modify or rescind a fund balance commitment.

e Assigned - amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, as determined by
a formal action or policy of the Town Council or its appointed official.

e Unassigned - the residual classification for the government’'s general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

The Town has set aside amounts for emergency situations, revenue shortages or budgetary imbalances,
commonly referred to as revenue stabilization or reserve for economic uncertainty. The authority to set
aside those amounts generally comes from statue, ordinance, resolution, constitution or policy.
Stabilization amounts may be expended with Council approval only when certain specific circumstances
exist as determined by Council at that time.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are
available, it is the Town'’s policy to expend restricted fund balances first. When expenditures are incurred
for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, it is the Town’s policy
to expend committed, then assigned, then unassigned amounts in that order.
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Note 12 - Liability, Workers’ Compensation, and Purchased Insurance
A. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement

The Town of Mammoth Lakes is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority
(Authority). The Authority is composed of 121 California public entities and is organized under a joint
powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority
is to arrange and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess
insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of
coverage. The California JPIA began covering claims of its members in 1978. Each member
government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of Directors. The Board operates
through a nine-member Executive Committee.

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority

A revised cost allocation methodology was introduced in fiscal year 2010-11; however it retains many
elements of the previous cost allocation methodology. Each member pays an annual contribution to
cover estimated losses for the coverage period. This initial funding is paid at the beginning of the
coverage period. After the close of the coverage period, outstanding claims are valued. A retrospective
deposit computation is then conducted annually thereafter until all claims incurred during the coverage
period are closed on a pool-wide basis. This subsequent cost re-allocation among members based on
actual claim development can result in adjustments of either refunds or additional deposits required.

The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre-
funded through the annual contribution. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure
(payroll} and experience (claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool. Additional

information regarding the cost allocation methodology is provided below. For the fiscal year 2011-12, the
Town paid $981,781 for it insurance policy with the Authority.

Liability

In the liability program, claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and non-
public safety exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other
members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight
applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses
includes incurred costs up to $30,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s
total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from
$30,000 to $750,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred
costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs in excess of $750,000 up to the reinsurance attachment
point of $5 million are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss
layers. (5) Costs of covered claims from $5 million to $10 million are paid under a reinsurance contract
subject to a $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible. Costs of covered claims from $10 million to $15
million are paid under two reinsurance contracts subject to a combined $3 million annual aggregate
deductible.

On a cumulative basis for all re-insurance contracts the annual aggregate deductible is $5.5 million. (6)
Costs of covered claims from $15 million up to $50 million are covered through excess insurance
policies. The overall coverage limit for each member including all layers of coverage is $50 million per
occurrence.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 12 - Liability, Workers’ Compensation, and Purchased Insurance (continued)

Costs of covered claims for subsidence losses are paid by reinsurance and excess insurance with a
pooled sub-limit of $35 million per occurrence. This $35 million subsidence sub-limit is composed of (a)
$5 million retained within the pool's SIR, (b) $10 million in re-insurance and (c) $20 million in excess
insurance. The excess insurance layer has a $20 million annual aggregate.

Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million. Coverage from $2 million to $4
million is purchased as part of a re-insurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $4 million to
$10 million are pooled among members.

Workers’ Compensation

In the workers’ compensation program, claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and
fire) and non-public safety exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll
of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the
weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses
includes incurred costs up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's
total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from
$50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred
costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs in excess of $100,000 up to the re-insurance
attachment point of $2 million are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and
second loss layers. (5) Costs of covered claims from $2 million up to statutory limits are paid under a re-
insurance policy. Protection is provided per statutory liability under California Workers’ Compensation
Law.

C. Purchased Insurance

Pollution Legal Liability Insurance

The Town of Mammoth Lakes participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program (formerly
called environmental insurance) which is available through the Authority. The policy covers sudden and
gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the Town of Mammoth
Lakes. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a $50,000 deductible. The Authority has a limit of
$50 million for the 3-year policy period from July 1, 2011 through July 1, 2014. Each member of the
Authority has a $10 million sub-limit during the 3-year term of the policy.

Property Insurance

The Town of Mammoth Lakes participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority.
This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. Town of Mammoth Lakes
property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the Town of
Mammoth Lakes to the Authority. Town of Mammoth Lakes property currently has all-risk property
insurance protection in the amount of approximately $34,685,000. There is a $5,000 deductible per
occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance which has a $1,000 deductible. Premiums for
the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.

Earthquake and Flood Insurance

The Town of Mammoth Lakes purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a portion of its property.
The earthquake insurance is part of the property protection insurance program of the Authority. Town of
Mammoth Lakes property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of approximately
$18,729,000. There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value with a minimum deductible of $100,000.
Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 12 - Liability, Workers’ Compensation, and Purchased Insurance (concluded)

Crime |nsurance

The Town of Mammoth Lakes purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with a
$2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority. Premiums are paid annually
and are not subject to retrospective adjustments.

Special Event Tenant User Liability Insurance

The Town of Mammoth Lakes further protects against liability damages by requiring tenant users of
certain property to purchase low-cost tenant user liability insurance for certain activities on subject
property. The insurance premium is paid by the tenant user and is paid to the Town of Mammoth Lakes
according to a schedule. The Town of Mammoth Lakes then pays for the insurance. The insurance is
arranged by the Authority.

D. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or
judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were also no significant reductions in
pooled or insured liability coverage in fiscal year 2011-12.

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies

Except as discussed above, in the normal course of municipal operations, there are various legal claims
and legal actions pending against the Town for which no provision has been made in the financial
statements because the amount of liability, if any, is unknown. In the opinion of the town attorney and
town management, liabilities arising from these claims and legal actions, if any, will not be material to
these financial statements.

The Town has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of
the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements will not be material.

At June 30, 2012, the Town was in contract for several grant funded street projects, which are expected
to be completed by December 31, 2012.

Note 14 - Assessment District Debt

The Town acts as an agent for collection of property taxes and repayment of several special assessment
improvement bonds issued for assessment districts within the Town. Since the Town is not obligated in
the event of any manner for these special assessment bonds, the debt is not recorded in these financial
statements. The outstanding balance of the bond obligations at June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Bluffs Reassessment District 1993-4R $ 1,966,491
North Village Area 2003 Special Tax bonds $ 8,525,000

Note 15 - Dependence upon Tourism Industry

The Town is economically dependent on tourism generated tax dollars for providing revenue to its
general fund, the primary operating fund of the Town. Property tax revenue is also a main contributor to
the general fund. The following table shows what percentage these three revenue sources provide to
the Town’s general fund.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 15 - Dependence upon Tourism Industry (continued)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30;

General fund tax type: 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Transient Occupancy 46% 51% 50% 55% 54%
Property 16% 21% 18% 16% 18%
Sales 9% 13% 8% 13% 16%

71% 85% 76% 84% 88%

The tourism industry accounts for all the transient occupancy taxes collected and a significant portion of
all sales taxes collected. Consequently, a downturn in the tourism industry for the Town would result in a
substantial reduction in general fund revenue. In the event of such a downturn, the Town may have
insufficient resources in its general fund to pay all of its obligations or provide services to its citizens at
the current level. Note, an additional voter approved sales tax increase commenced in fiscal year 2008-
09.

Note 16 - New Pronouncements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 62

The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain
accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on
or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations.

e Accounting Principles Board Opinions.

e Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA)
Committee on Accounting Procedure.

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the “FASB and AICPA
pronouncements.”

This Statement also supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating the
election provided in paragraph 7 of that Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to
apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. However, those entities can continue to apply, as other accounting
literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, including this Statement.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Earlier application is encouraged. The provisions of this Statement generally are
required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented. The requirements in this Statement will
improve financial reporting by contributing to the GASB’s efforts to codify all sources of generally
accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source.

This effort brings the authoritative accounting and financial reporting literature together in one place, with

that guidance modified as necessary to appropriately recognize the governmental environment and the
needs of governmental financial statement users.
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 16 - New Pronouncements (continued)

It will eliminate the need for financial statement preparers and auditors to determine which FASB and
AICPA pronouncement provisions apply to state and local governments, thereby resulting in a more
consistent application of applicable guidance in financial statements of state and local governments.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68

The GASB issued Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,” in June 2012.
The primary objective of this standard is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. The Statement requires the liability of employers and non-employer
contributing entities to employees for defined benefit pensions (net pension liability) to be measured as
the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided thought the pension plan to
current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total
pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The effective date of this
Standard is for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2014.

Note 17 - Subsequent Events

On July 2, 2012 the Town filed for a voluntary petition for relief under chapter 9 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code. On November 16, 2012 the Bankruptcy Court dismissed the Town’s chapter 9 case.
As a result, the Town is liable for a prior judgment award in the amount of $42,186,032, and other current
and noncurrent obligations previously entered into.

The management of the Town has reviewed the results of operations for the period from its fiscal year
end June 30, 2012 through December 21, 2012, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued in “draft” form, and have determined that no adjustments are necessary to the amounts reported
in the accompanying financial statements nor have any subsequent events occurred, the nature of which
would require disclosure except as discussed in the previous paragraph.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Note to Required Supplementary Information on
Budgetary Comparison Information
Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

Prior to the close of each fiscal year, the Town Manager submits to the Town Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget
includes proposed revenue and expenditures.

Public hearings are conducted at Town Council meetings to obtain taxpayer comments prior to
adoption of the budget in June.

Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted for all governmental fund types through a Council
approved budget.

The Town Manager is authorized to transfer budget amounts within and between funds as
deemed desirable and necessary in order to meet the Town's needs; however, revisions that alter
the total expenditures must be approved by the Town Council. Formal budgetary integration is
employed as a management control device during the year for the governmental type funds.

Budgets for the governmental type funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally

accepted accounting principles. Budgeted amounts presented are as originally adopted and as
further amended by the Town Council.
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Resources (Inflows)
Taxes and assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and penalties
Use of money and property
Other revenue
Transfers in from other funds
Amounts Available for Appropriation

Charges to Appropriations (Outfiow)
General government
Public safety
Tourism, parks and recreation
Community development
Public ways / streets
Transportation and transit
Workforce housing
Transfers out to other funds
Total Charges to Appropriations

Surplus (Deficit)

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Budgetary Comparison Information

General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 16,892,795 §$ 16,892,785 §$ 16,179,213 $ (713,582)
244,601 244,601 267,274 22,673
1,265,121 1,265,121 689,497 (575,624)
1,020,177 1,020,177 952,590 (67,587)

52,000 52,000 44,614 (7,386)
108,835 108,835 88,211 (20,624)
719,696 719,696 97,934 (621,762)
11,264,829 11,264,829 11,411,349 146,520
31,568,054 31,568,054 29,730,682 (1,837,372)
3,318,205 3,318,205 6,241,491 (2,923,286)
5,345,909 5,345,909 5,345,361 548
3,417,034 3,417,034 3,378,478 38,556
1,834,108 1,834,108 1,633,877 200,231
805,958 805,958 1,322,357 (516,399)
1,180,955 1,180,955 1,114,243 66,712
471,106 471,106 779,420 (308,314)
15,306,722 15,306,722 14,864,063 442,659
31,679,997 31,679,997 34,679,290 (2,999,293)
$ (111,943) $ (111,943) $ (4,948608) $ (4,836,665)
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TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
Fund Balance Designations Section of the Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Major Nonmaijor
General Governmental  Governmental
Fund Balances Fund Funds Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Long term notes receivable $ 900,000 $ - 3 - $ 900,000
Restricted for:
Measure R projects - 1,831,346 - 1,831,346
Measure U projects - 841,122 - 841,122
Drug enforcement programs - - 32,126 32,126
Debt service - - 206,255 206,255
Total restricted fund balances - 2,672,468 238,381 2,910,849
Committed
Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 1,045,137 - - 1,045,137
Total committed fund balances 1,045,137 - - 1,045,137
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned 6,513,752 (2,410,803) (2,060,775) 2,042,174
Total Fund Balances $ 8,458,889 $ 261,665 $ (1,822,394) $ 6,898,160
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